1990

Zions First National Bank, a national association v. John A. Dahlstrom, an individual; Marylin H. Dahlstrom, an individual; Alexco, a Utah limited partnership; First Security Bank of Utah, N.A., a national association; United States of America; Robert J. Poulsen, attorney for Planned Outdoor Living; valley Bank and Trust Company, a Utah corporation; State Bank of Southern Utah, a Utah corporation; F.R. Reeder, dba F.R. Reeder Leasing; State of Utah, and First Security Mortgage Company, Pacific Sav-Corp., an Hawaiian corporation, and Pac Service Incorporated, an Hawaiian corporation : Brief of Appellant

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This appeal was originally taken to the Supreme Court of the State of Utah pursuant to its original appellate jurisdiction over the order and summary judgment appealed from pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-2-2(j) (Supp. 1989). The judgment appealed from had been entered as a final judgment in accordance with Rule 54(b), Utah R. Civ. P.

Pursuant to the authority vested in the Supreme Court, this appeal was poured over to the Court of Appeals for disposition.

STATEMENT OF NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This appeal is from the final order of the Third District Court of Salt Lake County, Utah, granting Defendant-Appellee First Security Bank of Utah, N.A., and First Security Mortgage Company's ("First Security") motion for summary judgment of foreclosure against Defendant-Appellant Alexco's Parcel No. 3, and denying Alexco's Rule 56(f) motion for a continuance to permit discovery.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. Did the Court err in granting summary judgment to First Security on the basis of a release agreement signed by Alexco in light of (a) First Security's failure to render agreed accountings which prevented Alexco from specifically

disputing the dollar amounts claimed by First Security to be due, and (b) discrepancies and unexplained increases and decreases in alleged amounts to be due under the loan account obligations shown by, or legitimately to be inferred from, First Security's own pleadings and affidavits, thus presenting a disputed issue of fact?

2. Did the Court abuse its discretion in denying Alexco's Rule 56(f) motion for continuance to pursue discovery of First Security's books and records related to the loan account obligations in question?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. NATURE OF THE CASE

In May 1986 John and Marylin Dahlstrom filed a Chapter 11 bankruptcy petition. Zions First National Bank and First Security Mortgage Company, the assignee of First Security Bank of Utah, filed secured creditors' claims in the bankruptcy case. Alexco, a Dahlstrom-family limited partnership, had pledged certain real properties as security for various Dahlstrom note obligations to First Security, including its "Parcel 3" for a guaranty and a note it had jointly made with the Dahlstroms. In January 1987 the bankruptcy court lifted the automatic stay to allow the banks to pursue remedies against properties which had been pledged to them as security for the Dahlstroms' obligations. Zions commenced the Third

District Court action below to resolve priority conflicts with First Security and to foreclose against pledged properties. First Security counterclaimed and cross-claimed against the Dahlstroms and Alexco for the foreclosure and sale of collateral given by them.

B. COURSE OF THE PROCEEDINGS

In August 1987 the bankruptcy court confirmed the Dahlstroms' Chapter 11 reorganization plan. That plan included the requirement that various issues raised in the Third District Court action between First Security and Zions be resolved before foreclosure could be pursued with respect to certain of the pledged properties. In May 1989 First Security and Zions settled their disputes and stipulated that First Security could proceed with the foreclosure of Alexco's Parcel 3.

In July 1989 First Security moved for a summary judgment of foreclosure on Alexco's Parcel 3. All parties stipulated that the obligations for which Parcel 3 was conveyed as security were in default, and that the trust deed given by Alexco on Parcel 3 was valid and enforceable. The attorneys' fees and costs issues were also resolved by stipulation. The sole issue contested was the amount of Alexco's indebtedness to First Security under the guaranty and note it had made with the Dahlstroms.

C. DISPOSITION AT TRIAL

The trial court ruled that a Mutual Release and Waiver Agreement entered into by the Dahlstroms, Alexco and First Security in connection with the bankruptcy case precluded Alexco from challenging the dollar amounts claimed in First Security's affidavits, thus permitting a finding that no issue existed regarding the sums due under the guaranty and note obligations secured by Alexco's Parcel 3. Accordingly, First Security's summary judgment motion for the foreclosure and sale of Parcel 3 and entry of a deficiency judgment was granted.

The trial court also denied Alexco's Rule 56(f) motion for a continuance to permit discovery of First Security's books and records to make an accounting of the Dahlstrom and Alexco loan accounts.

D. STATEMENT OF FACTS

Between 1982 and 1984 the Dahlstroms executed a series of notes and a guaranty for First Security, namely: a 1982 note for \$2.4 million; an amendment to that 1982 note increasing it to \$9.3 million; a 1983 note for \$2.38 million; a 1984 note for \$1.4 million; and, a note guaranty for \$512,000. (Clerk's paginated index of original papers filed in the Third District Court, hereafter "P.," 2101-03.) Alexco joined Dahlstroms in the guarantee of the \$512,000 note and as a co-maker of the 1984 note, and pledged its Parcel 3 property as security for those obligations. (P. 2103 and 2106) First Security treated and dealt with the notes and guaranty obligations as

interrelated matters and referred to the loans as the "Dahlstrom loan account." (P. 2396) Consistent with this course of dealing First Security applied almost all the funds it received from payments and from collateral proceeds to the interest and principal on whichever note it chose at its sole discretion without notifying Dahlstroms, and no regular or specific reports were given to Dahlstroms as to the allocations of their payments and the collateral proceeds to principal and interest under the various obligations. (P. 2396) Proceeds of the 1982 note included pre-payments of interest for three years, but First Security never provided Dahlstroms with information as to how or when those loan proceeds were disbursed to pay interest. (P. 2396) Dahlstroms paid quarterly interest at the rate of \$75,000 on the 1983 note up to the time of their bankruptcy filing in April 1986. First Security failed to provide information regarding the calculation of that interest or confirming whether it was, in fact, applied to that note obligation, and as of the date of Dahlstroms' bankruptcy First Security claimed \$414,000 accrued interest was owed on that obligation. (P. 2396-97)

First Security also applied partnership distributions from PSR Development, a Utah partnership, to the Dahlstrom loan account which totalled approximately \$701,000 without accounting to them for allocation of those payments to

principal and interest. (P. 2397 and 2449-50) Other collateral given by the Dahlstroms which First Security allocated to principal and interest under their loan accounts at its own discretion and without the Dahlstroms' participation included approximately \$679,000 cash and property from Mr. Dahlstrom's law firm profit sharing trust, \$246,000 from condominiums, and \$2.749 million as a credit bid on the foreclosure sale of the Dahlstroms' residence and other parcels. (P. 2398) The Dahlstroms were given no information concerning either the calculation of that credit bid or the balance due under the 1982 amended note after application of that credit. They received only an IRS Form 1099 from First Security disclosing that credit sum. (P. 2398-99)

In First Security's pleadings and affidavits filed in this action its claims regarding the amounts of principal and interest due on the Dahlstrom loan account obligations at various dates is disclosed. That information is summarized as follows:

<u>Notes</u>	<u>April 18, 1986¹</u>	<u>November 2, 1987²</u>	<u>June 30, 1988³</u>
1982 Note			\$6,190,606
1982 Note			
Amend.	\$5,076,845 pr.	\$6,783,422 pr.	505,875
	<u>1,644,636 int.</u>	<u>1,690,181 int.</u>	<u> </u>
	\$6,721,481	\$8,473,603	\$6,696,481

1983 Note	<u>\$2,377,986 pr.</u> <u>414,482 int.</u>	<u>\$2,377,986 pr.</u> <u>748,785 int.</u>	<u>\$2,792,468</u>
	\$2,792,468	\$3,126,771	\$2,792,468
1984 Note	<u>\$ 688,841 pr.</u> <u>119,144 int.</u>	<u>\$ 783,042 pr.</u> <u>241,683 int.</u>	<u>\$ 807,986</u>
	\$ 807,985	\$1,024,725	\$ 807,986
Guaranteed Note	<u>\$ 512,287</u> <u>90,961</u>		<u>\$ 603,248</u>
	\$ 603,248		\$ 603,248

1. First Security's amended cross-claims, amounts alleged outstanding as of April 18, 1986. (P. 2107)
2. First Security affidavit, amounts presently outstanding to November 2, 1987. (P. 840)
3. First Security affidavit, amounts presently outstanding including interest at April 18, 1986. (P. 1424)

This information in First Security's pleadings and affidavits reflected increases and decreases in the Dahlstrom loan account obligations which they could not explain, for example: The principal and interest under the 1984 note increased by 94,201 and \$122,539, respectively, between April 1986 and November 1987, and then decreased back to the April 1986 totals as of June 1988. First Security did not explain these changes to the Dahlstroms, and they otherwise do not have an explanation for them. (P. 2400) In April 1986, the principal and interest due on the 1982 amended note was

\$6,721,481. In January 1987 First Security conducted a trustee's foreclosure sale on the Dahlstroms' residence and other parcels at which it credit bid \$2,749,147. That credit should have reduced the amount due under the 1982 amended note, but as of November 1987--only ten (10) months later--First Security claimed the total due was \$8,473,603. Based on the interest rate provided in the amended 1982 note, the interest due should not have been \$1.69 million after only ten months if the sale's \$2.749 million credit bid had been applied. (P. 2400-01) The total due under the 1983 note increased by \$334,00 between the bankruptcy filing date and November 1987, but then decreased by June 30th to the April 1986 amount without any explanation to the Dahlstroms. (P. 2401)

It was against this background of the failure by First Security to report how it had allocated payments and collateral proceeds between principal and interest and the apparently inexplicable and conflicting loan account balance claims in its pleadings and affidavits filed in the on-going state court foreclosure action that the Dahlstroms and Alexco negotiated and signed a Letter-Agreement (P. 2496) and a Mutual Release and Waiver Agreement (P. 2247) with First Security in August 1988. It is this release agreement, which incorporates the Letter-Agreement, that First Security asserts as a bar to Alexco's challenge of the amounts it claims due

under the 1984 note and guaranty which were the subject of its summary judgment motion.

In August 1988 First Security's recent bankruptcy proof of claim identified the Dahlstroms' indebtedness in an "aggregate amount of \$11,530,351.75" without specifying the parts thereof attributable to the specific Dahlstrom loan account notes. (P. 2500-02) John Dahlstrom signed the Letter-Agreement for Alexco on the basis, in part, of his understanding of First Security's representation that an accounting would be rendered of the calculations of the amounts due under each promissory note under the Dahlstrom loan account. (P. 2492) Paragraph 7 of the Letter-Agreement provides that the Dahlstroms would withdraw their objections to First Security's filed bankruptcy claims. (P. 2497) The release agreement incorporated that provision in paragraph 6.D. (P. 2251).

Two months later, in October 1988, First Security filed an amended proof of claim with the bankruptcy court which stated it was being filed ". . . to outline the current state of FSMC's [First Security] claims against the Dahlstroms so that the Dahlstroms can comply with paragraph 7 of the Letter Agreement." (P. 2441) That amended claim set out ". . . corrected amounts of the obligations . . . owed by the Dahlstroms . . . after crediting the Dahlstroms for the collateral liquidated to date" and listed each of the Dahlstrom loan account notes, but only a total figure for

principal and interest was given. (P. 2442) First Security then requested John Dahlstrom to execute a written withdrawal of the objections to its claims asserting that the "corrected amounts" in its amended claim provided the accounting of the amounts calculated for each note. Dahlstrom refused for the reason that the amended claim did not constitute First Security's rendering of the contemplated accounting. (P. 2492)

Thereafter, between April and mid-July 1989, Alexco and First Security negotiated regarding First Security's foreclosure of Parcel 3 and the amount of a sale credit bid to which Alexco might stipulate. In the context of those discussions Dahlstrom again requested an accounting from First Security. First Security declined to provide an accounting beginning from 1982, but did state it would provide such information for the post-bankruptcy period, that is, after April 1986. Approximately a week after the last of those discussions First Security filed its summary judgment motion to foreclose against Alexco's Parcel 3, and no information for that agreed partial accounting had been given to Alexco. (P. 2395)

First Security's memorandum supporting its Rule 56 motion asserted as an uncontested fact that \$807,985 was the amount outstanding as of April 1986 on the 1984 note under the Dahlstrom loan account. (P. 2266) Alexco challenged First

Security's failure to recognize a \$90,540 credit against that obligation for the sale of the Dahlstroms' Hatch Ranching Partnership interest, and First Security filed a subsequent affidavit recognizing a credit for those collateral proceeds and correcting its claim. (P. 2475) Because the accountings agreed to in August 1988 and, again, in 1989 before the Rule 56 motion was filed had not been rendered by First Security, Alexco was forced to resist the motion solely on the grounds that the promised accountings had not been rendered and that the conflicts between the information Alexco did have and First Security's own pleadings and affidavits--including the apparently inexplicable increases and decreases in the amounts it claimed were due--permitted inferences that errors may have been made in allocations between principal and interest which created issues of fact.

Alexco also filed a Rule 56(f) motion requesting that First Security's motion be denied with leave to renew or, alternatively, continuing the hearing to permit Alexco to formally request via discovery the accounting information it needed to rebut First Security's affidavits concerning the amounts alleged to be due under the 1984 note and the guaranty. Alexco's motion was supported by the affidavit of its general partner, John Dahlstrom, which showed the reasons for its inability to present all facts essential to its opposition, that the objects of the inquiry it sought to

pursue by discovery would be substantive and material, that Alexco had made request of First Security for production of agreed accountings without success, and that First Security would not be prejudiced by allowing the continuance sought for discovery purposes. (P. 2415) Alexco also estimated the time needed to complete such discovery and an accounting would be under sixty days, and that Parcel 3 would not be subject to waste or deterioration because it was unimproved.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Alexco was prevented from specifically controverting First Security's affidavit allegations of the amounts due under the guaranty and 1984 note because of the bank's refusal to provide an accounting of the applications to the Dahlstrom loan account of payments and proceeds of collateral as it had represented and agreed would be done. First Security's pleadings and affidavits in the trial court contain both inconsistencies and unexplained increases and decreases in the amounts due under specific notes included in the Dahlstrom loan account which would permit legitimate inferences as to the accuracy of its claims made in support of its summary judgment motion. For these reasons, the court's order granting summary judgment of foreclosure and entry of deficiency judgment was improper.

The court's denial of Alexco's Rule 56(f) motion to permit discovery was an abuse of discretion where the accountings promised by First Security were not made which precluded Alexco from specifically controverting the affidavit statements by the bank's officers regarding the status of the Dahlstrom loan account.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

FACTUAL ISSUES WERE SHOWN
TO EXIST, OR COULD BE
INFERRED, WHICH PRECLUDED
A GRANT OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT

First Security argued that the Mutual Release and Waiver Agreement prohibited a challenge to its foreclosure against Parcel 3 because under the release agreement Alexco had stipulated to foreclosure to permit First Security to liquidate its collateral, had waived all claims with respect to the guaranty and 1984 note, and had waived its right to challenge the balances owed to First Security for the 1984 note and guaranty as set out in its amended claim in bankruptcy filed two months after that release agreement.

The trial court agreed with First Security stating, "It appears to the court that the release agreement is everything First Security claims it is" Alexco disagrees with the court's conclusion for these reasons:

Alexco's general partner signed the Letter-Agreement on the basis of a representation that First Security would render

an accounting of its calculation of the amounts it claimed were due under each of the Dahlstrom loan account promissory notes. Those note obligations comprised almost all of its "aggregate" \$11.5 million claim then on file in the bankruptcy court, and the Letter-Agreement, at ¶7, contemplated Dahlstroms would withdraw their objections to that claim. This withdrawal-of-objections provision was incorporated in the release agreement at paragraph 6.D. Neither the Letter-Agreement nor the release agreement provides that First Security is to file an amended claim in the bankruptcy court explaining its \$11.5 million "aggregate" claim. However, two months later it filed a second amended proof of claim ". . . to outline the current state of FSMC's [First Security] claims against the Dahlstroms so that the Dahlstroms can comply with paragraph 7 of the letter-agreement." (See ¶8, second amended proof of claim, P. 2348) In paragraph 10 of that amended proof of claim First Security sets out "corrected amounts" of the Dahlstrom loan account notes to reflect First Security's disposition of certain collateral described therein. The amended proof of claim also recites the Letter-Agreement's requirement that the Dahlstroms would ". . . withdraw their objections to the claims of First Security . . . filed in the bankruptcy proceedings" (¶8, second amended claim, P. 2438) The filing of this amended claim and its language, cited above, evidences an

acknowledgment by First Security of Alexco's assertion that an accounting was to be made as a condition to Dahlstroms' withdrawal of their objections to First Security's claims as to amounts due under the various Dahlstrom loan account notes. When First Security requested John Dahlstrom to execute a written withdrawal of the filed objections to its bankruptcy claims on the basis that the amended proof of claim and its "corrected amounts" constituted the promised accounting he refused to do so. Requests by the Dahlstroms and Alexco for the accounting, and First Security's acknowledgment that it would provide at least partial accountings, continued to be a part of their discussions thereafter and until July 1989 when First Security filed its motion to foreclose Parcel 3.

It would be improper to permit the trial court's foreclosure and deficiency-judgment order to stand on the basis of the release agreement when Alexco has been deprived of the information which may have enabled it to demonstrate facts disputing the amounts First Security claimed were due. The means and method of doing so, that is, an accounting, was promised to Alexco as an inducement to execute the Letter-Agreement. The release agreement was ". . . governed by and subject to the terms . . . of the Letter-Agreement and the documents executed in connection therewith." (P. 2252) The release agreement also stated: ". . . the documentation of the compromises and settlement arrangements related to the

aforesaid indebtedness [of Dahlstroms and Alexco] is being completed." (P. 2247) The release agreement contains no integration clause; to the contrary, it contemplates the completion of further documentation and delineates conditions precedent to be complied with by the borrowers. (P. 2250-51) Accordingly, Alexco's general partners' averment of the understanding that an accounting would be provided in connection with their withdrawal of objections to the bankruptcy claims would not alter or amend the release agreement and is consistent with the parties' subsequent conduct.

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