1990

Zions First National Bank, a national association v. John A. Dahlstrom, an individual; Marylin H. Dahlstrom, an individual; Alexco, a Utah limited partnership; First Security Bank of Utah, N.A., a national association; United States of America; Robert J. Poulsen, attorney for Planned Outdoor Living; valley Bank and Trust Company, a Utah corporation; State Bank of Southern Utah, a Utah corporation; F.R. Reeder, dba F.R. Reeder Leasing; State of Utah, and First Security Mortgage Company, Pacific Sav-Corp., an Hawaiian corporation, and Pac-Service Incorporated, an Hawaiian corporation : Brief of Appellee

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Pursuant to the terms of the Release Agreement, Alexco, the Dahlstroms and First Security, after negotiations, settled

¹A Sheriff's sale was held on January 9, 1990, at which Parcel 3 was sold for \$130,000 pursuant to the Third Judicial District Court's decree of foreclosure and order of sale.

and compromised various issues and disputes to avoid ongoing litigation. Releases of liability and nondischargeability were provided for the benefit of the Dahlstroms and the other partners of Alexco. In exchange, First Security was given certain assurances, including the right to foreclose its trust deed encumbering Parcel 3. Alexco has violated the Release Agreement by challenging First Security's foreclosure action. Alexco's claims are contrary to (or have been waived by) the Release Agreement. Even if the Court was inclined to ignore the Release Agreement, Alexco's claims are irrelevant, contrary to facts of record, and totally without specific evidentiary support. Furthermore, Alexco's attempt to rewrite the Release Agreement to receive the alleged "accounting" contradicts the terms of the Release Agreement and violates the parol evidence rule. Finally, in denying Alexco's Rule 56(f) motion, the trial court did not abuse its discretion; it only fulfilled the parties intent as expressed in the Release Agreement -- to end litigation once and for all.

ARGUMENT

I. THE STANDARD OF REVIEW OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON APPEAL.

Upon review of a grant of a motion for summary judgment, the appellate court applies the same standard as that applied by the trial court. Briggs v. Hocomb, 740 P.2d 281 (Utah Ct. App. 1987). Therefore, the appellate court should affirm the granting of summary judgment where it appears there are no genuine issues

of fact, or where, even according to the facts as contended by the losing party, the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. Reeves v. Geigy Pharmaceutical, Inc., 764 P.2d 636 (Utah Ct. App. 1988).

Applying this standard to this case, summary judgment was properly granted by the trial court because under the express terms of the Release Agreement First Security was entitled to judgment as a matter of law, and Alexco failed to genuinely controvert the facts presented by First Security.

II. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY GRANTED SUMMARY JUDGMENT AS A MATTER OF LAW BECAUSE ALEXCO'S CLAIMS ARE BARRED BY THE TERMS OF THE RELEASE AGREEMENT.

It is undisputed that the Dahlstroms and Alexco negotiated and executed the Release Agreement with First Security. Pursuant to the Release Agreement, First Security granted broad releases to the Dahlstroms and their children (the general and limited partners of Alexco). First Security waived any right to seek individual judgments against any of the non-general partners of Alexco (the Dahlstroms' children) on the obligations owed by Alexco to First Security and waived any nondischargeability claims against the Dahlstroms as the general partners of Alexco in the Dahlstroms' bankruptcy case. In addition, First Security released its claim to certain collateral owned by the Dahlstroms. In exchange for these releases, the Dahlstroms and Alexco agreed to permit First Security to foreclose its interest in Parcel 3.

In direct contradiction to the Release Agreement, Alexco has denied the right of First Security to complete its foreclosure of Parcel 3. Although the liability of the partners of Alexco has been waived by First Security, they insist that First Security must answer suppositions and conjecture as to conduct by First Security under various credit obligations entered into by Alexco and the Dahlstroms. The terms of the Release Agreement, as Judge Murphy recognized, do not allow Alexco and the Dahlstroms to deny First Security's right to foreclose its trust deed encumbering Parcel 3.

A. The Dahlstroms And Alexco Stipulated To The Foreclosure Of Parcel 3.

In the Release Agreement and to settle the pending litigation between the parties, the Dahlstroms and Alexco expressly agreed to the foreclosure of Parcel 3:

Notwithstanding the foregoing and anything to the contrary in this Agreement, First Security shall retain all rights which it presently has as an undersecured creditor and administrative claimant in the Dahlstroms Bankruptcy Case, and the indebtedness set forth in Exhibit "A" [which list includes the Guaranty and the 1984 First Security Note] and any other existing indebtedness of the Borrowers [including the Dahlstroms and Alexco] to First Security shall remain valid to the extent necessary to allow for the liquidation of and full recourse against the collateral security (or the assets otherwise assigned to First Security pursuant to the terms of the Letter Agreement) for said indebtedness. Such collateral shall include, without any limitation, the interests in Hatch Ranching assigned absolutely to First Security pursuant to the Letter Agreement, the real property in Salt Lake County, the Pacific Sav-Corps notes (if any), the E.R.I. stock, and the Trabanc stock.

See Release Agreement, Record at p. 2328. (Emphasis added). This provision prohibits Alexco from continuing to litigate First Security's right to foreclose Parcel 3.

B. The Dahlstroms And Alexco Waived All Claims With Respect To The Guaranty And The 1984 First Security Note And Other Obligations Owed To First Security.

Pursuant to the terms of the Release Agreement, the Dahlstroms and Alexco have also expressly waived and released any direct or indirect claims against First Security regarding the Guaranty and the 1984 First Security Note, which are the Alexco obligations secured by Parcel 3:

Borrowers [including the Dahlstroms and Alexco] and each of them, jointly and severally, do hereby waive, release, relinquish and forever disavow any and all claims, interests, rights, remedies, and causes of action assertable, directly or indirectly, against First Security or any of its agents, employees, officers, advisers, directors or consultants (whether or not any of the same were acting within or without the scope of their employment, agency or engagement with First Security) for any acts, actions, failures to act, representations, commitments, statements, warranties, failures to disclose or agreements, including without limitation any such conduct arising out of or in connection with (directly or indirectly) or otherwise contemplated or associated in any way with the transactions that are described on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein [which list includes the Guaranty and the 1984 First Security Note]. The waiver, release, relinquishment and disavowal herein made shall be construed broadly in favor of First Security, its agents, attorneys, employees, officers, advisers, directors and consultants, and any ambiguity, doubt or question as to applicability of the same shall be resolved in all events in favor of waiver, release, relinquishment and disavowal. Borrowers agree that the waivers, releases, relinquishments and

disavowals herein granted shall be with respect to claims, interests, rights, remedies and causes of action known or unknown, matured or unmatured, contingent or direct, existing or hereafter arising. Borrowers' agreements herein are made without reliance upon any warranty, representation or statement of First Security with respect to any of the matters herein.

See Release Agreement, Record at pp. 2326-2327 (emphasis added).

The clear intent of the Release Agreement was to settle any remaining litigation between Alexco and First Security. Despite this intent, Alexco continues to ignore the terms of the Release Agreement and speculates as to alleged misapplications of loan payments and other improprieties by First Security. Alexco insists that these questions must be litigated before First Security can foreclose Parcel 3. Alexco breaches the Release Agreement by making these allegations. Any claim expressed in or implied by Alexco's pleadings that First Security misapplied or misallocated loan payments or the proceeds of collateral has been waived².

² Pursuant to the terms of the Release Agreement, the Dahlstroms also agreed to withdraw their objections to the claims of First Security filed in the Dahlstroms' bankruptcy proceedings. First Security's Second Amended and Supplemental Proof of Claim (which was filed to outline the current status of First Security's claims so that the Dahlstroms could comply with this obligation) sets forth the following claims with respect to the obligations at issue in this appeal:

Guaranteed Note:	\$603,248.86
1984 First Security Note:	\$717,446.50

See Dahlstrom Affidavit, Record at p. 2414. Alexco has waived any right to contest or challenge these claims.

In a further attempt to penetrate the express language in the Release Agreement, Mr. Dahlstrom filed a last minute affidavit at the hearing to consider First Security's summary judgment motion, in which Mr. Dahlstrom claims that representations regarding an "accounting" by First Security had been made at the time the Release Agreement was signed. See Supplemental Affidavit of John A. Dahlstrom, Record at p. 2492. And yet, the Dahlstroms and Alexco agreed in the Release Agreement that the releases provided in favor of First Security were "made without reliance upon any warranty, representation or statement of First Security" See Release Agreement, Record at p. 2327. Once again, Mr. Dahlstrom's claim contradicts the terms of the Release Agreement.

III. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY GRANTED SUMMARY JUDGMENT BECAUSE THERE ARE NO GENUINE ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT.

Alexco has attempted to create a series of questions and innuendo in an attempt to obscure the rights of First Security to foreclose Parcel 3. As stated previously, Alexco's speculations regarding First Security misdeeds have been waived and released in the Release Agreement and the right to foreclose affirmed. Even if the Court were inclined to disregard the express terms of the Release Agreement, Alexco's speculations are irrelevant to First Security's motion and are not supported by any specific evidentiary facts.

A. Any Claims Regarding Obligations Other Than The 1984 First Security Note And The Guaranty Are Irrelevant.

In its motion for summary judgment, First Security sought the foreclosure of Parcel 3, which secures Alexco's obligations under the Guaranty and the 1984 First Security Note. Alexco does not question or challenge the amounts advanced by First Security under the 1984 First Security Note or the Guaranty. Nonetheless, in an attempt to obfuscate the limited nature of First Security's motion, Alexco has made allegations regarding obligations not addressed or at issue in the foreclosure of Parcel 3. Alexco asserts that the entire history of the Dahlstroms' loan portfolio with First Security must be examined and litigated before First Security may liquidate, as permitted by the Release Agreement, the collateral securing the 1984 First Security Note and the Guaranty.

For example, Alexco claims that it is entitled to an accounting regarding interest paid on the 1982 and the 1983 First Security Notes. However, this information has absolutely no bearing on the obligations due under the 1984 First Security Note or Guaranty, and whether First Security is entitled to foreclose its trust deed encumbering Parcel 3. Therefore, such claim is irrelevant to First Security's motion for summary judgment.

As another example, Alexco has claimed that there were partnership distributions from PSR Development in August, 1983 and September, 1984, for which First Security has not accounted. These distributions predated both the Guaranty (November 1, 1984)

and the 1984 First Security Note (December 31, 1984). Again, this "red herring" has no bearing on the foreclosure of Parcel 3.

B. First Security Has Accounted For The Proceeds Received From The Liquidation Of Collateral.

In addition to Alexco's irrelevant references to the 1982 and 1983 First Security Notes, Alexco has claimed that unanswered questions remain regarding collateral such as (1) the liquidation of ERI corporation stock; (2) the credit bid on the foreclosure sale of the Dahlstroms' residence; and (3) the proceeds received from the sale of the Hatch Ranch. Alexco's allegations are misplaced. First Security has accounted for each of the items of collateral from which it has received proceeds. For example:

1. ERI Stock. The credit bid by First Security for the purchase of the ERI Stock was applied to the obligations owed by Mr. Dahlstrom to Central Bank & Trust Company, which represented the first lien against the ERI stock. First Security had acquired the Central Bank loan through the issuance of a letter of credit. None of the proceeds reached the 1984 First Security Note or the Guaranty. See Dahlstrom Affidavit, Record at p. 2412.

2. Foreclosure of the Residence and Parcels 4, 5 and 6. The \$2,749,147.00 credit bid for the purchase of the Residence and Parcels 4, 5 and 6 was applied against the 1982 First Security Note (as amended). Mr. Dahlstrom admits this fact in his affidavit. See Dahlstrom Affidavit, Record at pp. 2400-2401.

3. Hatch Ranch. At the time of the filing of First Security's motion for leave to file its Second Supplemental Counterclaim and Supplemental Cross-Claims, First Security's interest in Hatch Ranch had not been liquidated. Since that time, pursuant to the Release Agreement, the Dahlstroms assigned to First Security their interest in Hatch Ranch for a credit of \$90,540.00. As set forth in the Second Amended and Supplemental Proof of Claim, the \$90,540.00 credit was applied against the 1984 First Security Note. See Dahlstrom Affidavit, Record at p. 2411.

In short, Mr. Dahlstrom makes these and other claims regarding proceeds received by First Security without a stitch of documentation or detailed testimony that any such questions exist or that they have any relevance or bearing on the right of First Security to foreclose its trust deed encumbering Parcel 3. This attempt to unwind the terms of the Release Agreement should not be permitted.

C. Alexco's Claim That The Balances Owed On The 1984 First Security Note And Guaranty Are In Dispute Is Not Supported By Specific Evidentiary Facts.

To avoid a summary judgment motion, the opposing party must set forth specific facts showing there is a genuine issue for trial. Treloggan v. Treloggan, 699 P.2d 747 (Utah 1985). Mere allegations or denial of the pleadings are not a sufficient basis for opposing summary judgment. Hall v. Fitzgerald, 671 P.2d 224 (Utah 1983).

Alexco has not controverted the facts presented by First Security regarding the 1984 First Security Note or the Guaranty. Rather, Alexco has only raised a series of unsubstantiated questions in an attempt to obscure the rights of First Security under the Release Agreement. To avoid summary judgment, Alexco must do more than merely allege that there have been misapplications and improprieties on the part of First Security. Alexco fails to meet its burden in this case.

IV. ALEXCO'S CLAIM THAT IT IS ENTITLED TO AN ACCOUNTING FROM FIRST SECURITY IS CONTRARY TO THE TERMS OF THE RELEASE AGREEMENT AND IS BARRED BY THE UTAH PAROL EVIDENCE RULE.

In an attempt to dodge the effect of the Release Agreement and to find merit in this appeal, Alexco now claims that First Security promised some type of an "accounting" as part of the Release Agreement. The Release Agreement contains no such promise; indeed, the Release Agreement states otherwise. The releases provided by the Dahlstroms and Alexco were "made without reliance upon any warranty, representation or statement of First Security. . . ." See Release Agreement, Record at p. 2327. In any event, Alexco's claim is barred by the Utah parol evidence rule.

A. Evidence Of The Alleged Oral Agreement Between Alexco And First Security For An Accounting Is Barred By The Parol Evidence Rule.

The Utah parol evidence rule provides generally that oral evidence of antecedent understandings and negotiations may not be admitted to vary or contradict the terms of a document unless it is intended to clarify the meaning of ambiguous provisions.

Rowley v. Marrcrest Homeowners' Ass'n., 656 P.2d 414, 417 (Utah 1982); Union Bank v. Swenson, 707 P.2d 663, 665 (Utah 1985). The rule adopts the policy that a written culmination of oral discussions and negotiations, if unambiguous, is far better evidence of the agreement and excludes attempts to admit extrinsic utterances to serve the same purpose for which the writing was prepared. Garrett v. Ellison, 72 P.2d 449, 451-52 (Utah 1937).

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